Regular Meeting
Monday, September 20, 2021
6:00 pm
Chowan County Public Safety Center
305 West Freemason Street

This meeting was recorded. A copy of the recording is in the meeting file labeled September 20,
2021.

Present Chair Bob Kirby, Commissioners, Chris Evans, Tray Taylor, Alex Kehayes, Larry
McLaughlin, Ron Cummings and Ellis Lawrence.

Staff present County Manager Kevin Howard, Finance Officer Cathy Smith and Board Clerk
Susanne Stallings.

Regular Meeting
Chair Kirby called the regular meeting to order and led all in the pledge of allegiance.

Commissioner Kehayes then offered the invocation.

Approval of Agenda
Ms. Stallings noted a request to amend the agenda to add item 7a, broadband letter of support.

Commissioner Cummings moved to approve the agenda as amended. Chair Kirby asked for all in
favor, the motion passed unanimously (7-0).

Public Comment
Chair Kirby then opened the floor for public comment.

There was none.

Consent Agenda

a. Approval of Minutes
The Board will review and consider approval of the minutes of August 16, 2021
Regular Meeting, August 30, 2021 Special Meeting, September 7, 2021 Special and
Regular Board meetings.

b. Surplus
Meeting room sound equipment, removed from service 2019.

6 — Shure Wired Microphones, Model CVG18 and associated cables



Commissioner McLaughlin to approve the consent agenda as presented. Chair Kirby asked for all
in favor, the motion passed unanimously (7-0).

NC Forestry Service County Report

County Ranger Rick Long provided the Board with the Annual County Report. A copy of the
report is in the meting file labeled September 20, 2021. Additionally, Mr. Long provided the Board
with photos of the new truck recently purchased. A copy of the photos is also in the meeting file
labeled September 20, 2021.

Commissioner McLaughlin discussed programs that are offered by Forestry to assist residents with
tree concerns. He expressed his concerns over sycamore trees dying from the top in certain areas
near Town.

Mr. Long stated he would look into it.

John A. Holmes High School

School Superintendent Dr. Michael Sasscer and Rick Ott Construction Manager with MB Khan
presented the Board with a PowerPoint recommendation from the Joint School Committee to
renovate the Old DF Walker School and proceed with single phase construction of the high school
project.

The PowerPoint is inserted into the minutes below along with discussion on each slide.

i '.-—-"'\

Complete Re,no#afion of

 “Old D.F. Walker School”

AT gT
%
A

L 3
COLLEGE
ALBEMARLE




A Stand Alone Project with Long-Term Benefits

Not a part of the JAHHS Project

Estimated Cost $3,000,000

Benefits

« Creates a greater presence for the College of the Albemarle - Visibility on
Oakum St.

+ Allows ALL of "Old D.F. Walker School” to be used as intended - to benefit the
children and the Community of Chowan County

* Gives the County an opportunity to brand this campus as an Education District -
possible naming rights “The Harriet Jacobs Education District” to celebrate our
community's history

+ Allows the Boys & Girls Club to be used as a temporary school (2022-23) for
JAHHS construction

M. B. Kabhn Construction Co., Inc.

“Old D.F. Walker School” Renovation

* Renovate upstairs
B T ' to serve as

| | classroom space
New then ECPS office
<+— Classrooms & space and

Office Space S—— community space

} J b, * Renovate
B s — technology space

to large event
space (e.g., BOE
meetings,
professional
trainings)

) P

B&G Club Elevator and ==-—— » Elevator and
Entrance ECPS Entrance entrance

M. B. Kahn Construction Co., Inc.

Mr. Ott stated this is a two part renovation where the 2™ floor would be renovated later for office
space, a renovation of the technology building space and additional of elevator and entrance.



Construction and Funding

Design and Construction
+ M.B. Kahn and John Farkas (architect)
Estimated Cost $3,000,000

» Shared cost with Edenton-Chowan Public Schools
+ State Budget?
« Capital Carryover, ESSER, Fund Balance

+ Asking the County for approximately $1,500,000

M. B. Kabhn Construction Co., Inc.

Mr. Ott stated the schools propose the County and schools split the total cost. He stated that MB
Khan would work with John Farkas who did the 1% floor renovations for the Boys and Girls Club
to design the 2" floor.

Single Phase Construction Request

The Board will consider a recommendation from the Joint School Committee for single phase
construction of John A. Holmes High School.

Phasing Options

New Building Construction

M. B. Kahn Construction
John A. Holmes High School




New Building - Location on Existing Site

M. B. Kahn Construction Co., Inc.

Mr. Ott stated the red is the current building and the blue is the overlay of the new building.

Multi-phase Building Construction
¢ Entire existing
school remains
while Phase 1
Academic
Building is
constructed

Phase 1
Academic
Building is
constructed

M. B. Kabhn Construction Co., Inc.

Mr. Ott stated originally the plan was to build the Phase I blue academic building first while school
was in use. He sated that would take 12-14 months to construct. The plan called for students to
then be relocated into the new construction and demolition of the existing red structure would
begin.



Multi-phase Building Construction

Demolish
Existing
Academic
1 Wings

Cafe, Commons
and Gym to
Remain

Phase 1
Academic
Building
Complete, then
Move Students

He stated that under this plan the space shown in the red would remain during construction.

Multi-phase Building Construction

Theater,
Gymnasium &
Kitchen Dining
Construction

vi. B, Kabhn Construction Co., Inc.

Secure Access to
Cafe, Commons,
Gym during Phase 2
Construction

M. B. Kahn Construction Co., Inc.

He stated then the theater, gym and new cafeteria would be constructed. He stated this poses an
issue because the trades that were on site at the beginning of the Phase one would then have to
comeback for this new construction. He noted that this adds more time to the project and more

expense.




Multi-phase Building Construction

]
L)

Demolish
Existing Gym,
Commons and
Dining and
Finish Site and
Fields

(LT

vi. B, Kahn Cornstruction Co., Inc.

He stated the third and final phase is completion of the site after demolition of the cafeteria and
gym space. He stated the final site work would also be completed.

Schedule
ke A, mim‘rh’u!f.hnu
e
B e [ — = = = = = r
o el e lomon Ll o0 on | lon lom o il ol ol e ol -

iy Cornige kg T e TN P A

v ot o Dinssmmnt, £55% Agrows Bdnw  Tos L1/NTEN IHE -ty

Dimar s s Mol T Tk 1AM 1P LSS s Fmai Dusige ippransi

Eeg et b . Wden el LTI WINE epieteey ey e

[ — T L ]

Bty P 1 L L

e Buding Crmpiraion Wi Mo BT RN e Beiing iz

o e (5 o i Clsspnim 1 M Coition. Bl M 1L W o i S o 5 i o e i

e L —_—

e B Dmmcind: T Chasseoom Wonga Wdm  Won MR WINT | e Dmaien D48 Disseers g

s Rabtar i b B e b [T ST S .

L T ERP T — Taes  Mes SR YR Eramn Meme v £
ety Fropect Compbeimsn TR ks VR R TS —_—

EREE L Wha e G R b & ek 3 & o R by
T et e iy Baa M T TS P Kt e Pt
| Pk Pt Complin N o e Pragen Compienion,
I- r-r

M. B. Kahn Construction Co., Inc.

He stated that the financing cannot be completed before June 2024 this allows for no tax increase
and under the multiphase construction plan the project goes into 2025.



Multi-phase Advantages / Disadvantages

Advantages

« Students stay on Campus during construction.

Disadvantages

« Students stay on Campus during construction
* Most costly option long-term
*  Minimum of 12 months of additional General Conditions $$%
« Increased cost for temporary utilities, safety fencing, etc.
* Increased contractor risk contingencies added
* Increased interest paid

= Students in close proximity to construction activities

M. B, Kahn Construction Go., Inc.

He reviewed the advantages and disadvantages of a multi-phase project. He stated portable units
may be needed for this.

Commissioner Kehayes asked for clarification on the meaning of General Condition.
Mr. Ott stated this is costs necessary for project development such as fencing, job trailers which

are usually 8-15% of the total project cost. He stated it is less money spent on construction costs
and reduces monies available for construction costs.



Single-phase Building Construction

Cafe, Commons
and Gym to
Remain

Demolish
Existing
Academic
Wings

M. B. Kabhn Construction Co., Inc.

Mr. Ott stated that he was asked to look at the 2™ floor of DF Walker School. After discussions it
was determined the school could utilize the space for one year and would allow for the educational
process to be more efficient. He stated that use of both the 1% and 2" floor spaces at DF Walker is
necessary.

Single-phase Building Construction

Secure Access to
Café, Commons,
Gym during
Construction

Build entire new
school building
construction

at one time,

Start @ Academic
Bldg.

M. B. Kahn Construction Co., Inc.

He stated this option allows the contractors to start on the academic building construction and
rather than sending them home they can begin work on the second site building. He stated this plan
allows for more efficiency.



Single-phase Building Construction

Complete Core
Building =
Construction !

Maintain Secure
Access between
Completed and

Move Staff _.,'g.', ey, = A

Students to New MJ? TR T Existing Facilities
Academic ;i
Building

M. B. Kabhn Construction Co., Inc.

He stated students would be relocated for 12-14 months.

Single-phase Building Construction

]| il P

Demolish
Existing Gym,
Commons and
Dining and
Finish Site and
Fields

(LT

. B. Kahn Construction Co., Inc.




Schedule

Jha A sl High Schoal
g Prama e erahin
g y— Ce—— = = = o - - -
| LI e T I P HIE ST PR I = PaE SE e P S A =i A
Rty Dt mitiing T Tem NN AT
B D L K LN, Ol Vel LUMNIL Tes G & O Coatneemions i i, ippossct
o e g et Sde Tes T B i3 B Frad g et
ey gy A Miwn  Wed IVE LT Spivinny igocy Mpprevia
1| degr— L s et
Rty o Cormreioen Fild e TR e
Fromrs s ey ESdm M RINE INIRIE Frnenen/Sonmms Tampuery fpecn
| e et o i Wi e Ak & i e e W
i e i e g sy U Mea HINE wednna0 Do Mo e b Py L
e Bing Somaans A MEAWE AL o Bt it e
(79| o i i B b Wi Mea U AL Do e o W L
Rrtimay Frmpart Campissms. L .
S W ML MER0 B e Vo
i B ik 5 Semrwm Tarben N T e o [k [ s e
g Py [ampageme Ofen  RMTN TR o Wil Frajeni Completion
P |

M. B. Kahn Construction Ca., Inc.

He stated this approach allows for a July 2024 completion with some site work ongoing but the
substantial work is done.

Single-phase Advantages / Disadvantages

Advantages

« All mechanical, electrical, fire protection services areas are completed - no
temporary services required.

* Reduced number of staffistudent transitions.

= Reduced construction activity duration on a student occupied site.

* Reduce overall construction duration by one year.

+ Costsavings for Single Phase vs Multi-phase
* 12 months less General Conditions
« More competitive Bidding process
+ Less Contractor Risk Contingencies
+ § otherwise spent on GC's and Contingencies are now spent on useful space!

Disadvantages

« Relocate students for one Year
+ Move up the cost to renovate the 2" Floor of DF Walker

M. B. Kabhn Construction Co., Inc.

He stated that shuttling students is a disadvantage however this is the most favorable option.



School Operatio

ns during Construction
# .pn. i 1 -

| 3

Ay o B 8 e

|

1
Existing Fields and
Parking to Remain
Through Building

Café, Commans &
Gym to Remain

| Through Building
Construction

Zone -

: ] k] £ ~ I school
Construction |88 h‘“ s g | Entrances

Fr==C 00T ST~ 28 Construction ! ;
S S ¢ e BERRENEE
I

wi. B, Kabhn Co o Co., Inc.

Mr. Ott added that safety is a number one priority for this company and there is a good plan in
place to ensure student safety to keep them out of the red construction zone.

School Operations during Construction

« Complete physical separation between construction and academic operations
= Separate access for construction operations, deliveries, personnel.

« Protective walls constructed for all partial demolition areas to secure/protect
and make weather-tight.

M. B. Kahn Construction Co., Inc.

Mr. Ott noted asbestos in the old building will have to be removed.



Project Completion

] . A
L)

=
e
. T

ot
%‘.a "!‘"‘il.

i

Ly

aomaclrae oo ol

Ll

M. B. Kabhn Construction Co., Inc.
He stated this option is his recommendation to go single phase. He stated this option will allow

funds to be used for construction of classrooms and the DF Walker Building renovation would be
for future investment.

Recommendation

« Construct the new John A. Holmes High School as a single-phase project
+ Complete Renovation of the “Old D.F. Walker School”

M. B. Kabhn Construction Co., Inc.

Commissioner Kehayes asked about the fate of the Scout Hut.

Mr. Ott stated the Scout Hut will be relocated and is the small red box shown on the Project
Completion slide.



Commissioner Taylor asked if the Walker Campus space is adequate.

Mr. Ott stated that 23-24 classrooms are needed, that site allows for 21-22. He stated that COA
will provide the additional needed space.

Dr. Sasscer stated that Dr. Bagwell with COA and the Boys and Girls Club Director are excited
about the high school presence on their campus as it allows for increased participation in COA and
the Boys and Girls Club.

Commissioner Lawrence asked about the impact on the DF Walker alumni historical significance.

Dr. Sasscer stated hat he met with Stella Brothers on this matter and the project and naming rights
have been discussed. He stated that naming the campus the Harriet Jacobs educational district is
a way to celebrate the history and culture of the community. He stated the building name does not
change with this proposal.

Commissioner Kehayes asked if there had been considerations regarding the wear and tear on the
Boys and Girls Club space.

Mr. Howard stated this is open for discussion, they will most likely require paint repairs or
assistance with utilities.

Commissioner McLaughlin stated he liked the idea but expressed his concern over how to pay for
the renovation.

Mr. Howard stated the key is to phase the project. He stated the school could pay for the first half
and that allows the County time to locate the funds for the second half. He stated there have been
discussions for naming opportunities of the buildings or rooms. He stated the worst case scenario
is the County has to borrow the monies. He stated that the USDA funds for the high school cannot
be used for this project because this is a separate parcel of land, however there may be some
reimbursement at the end of the project.

Commissioner McLaughlin asked about the use of ARPA funds for the HVAC or ADA work. He
noted that the armory is a polling location and asked if the construction driveway allows for access
to that building.

Mr. Ott stated there would be access to the Armory. He stated the tennis courts will not be
accessible during construction.

Commissioner Lawrence asked about the savings if the project is to be completed one year earlier.

Mr. Ott stated he is trying to maximize the dollars from the loan to be used for construction and
he is also going to try to minimize costs on the project. He stated that there has been a 40% increase
in materials since the project began. He stated that the increases are not only COVID related but
also related to inflation.



Chair Kirby asked why the project has to be cut if Mr. Ott previously told the Board he could
complete it for $50 million. He stated that one year of general conditions is lost. He stated his
concern over this savings not being realized in the overall project.

Mr. Ott stated the budget was set prior to COVID impacts and he is trying to minimize the impacts
from COVID.

Chair Kirby stated that the budget was set 6 months to not more than one year ago.
Mr. Ott stated the original project was $65 million.

Chair Kirby stated that he is concerned they are conflating this project. He stated he is concerned
over any savings being eaten up by inflation.

Mr. Ott sated that some of the savings will be lost to inflation but some of the costs will come
down as well. He stated he has to be ready to move on the construction project by August 2022.

This matter was voted on later following the contract discussions.

Construction Manager Contract
Chair Kirby asked for clarification on the form of contract submitted by Mr. Ott.

Mr. Ott stated the contract provided is the type of contract that he has used since 1989. He stated
he will manage the construction and design and explained the bid process noting his method will
save money and time.

Chair Kirby asked if the school system requested that he be the construction manager rather than
construction manager at risk.

Mr. Ott stated that 1/3 of his contracts are construction manager, 1/3 is construction manager at
risk and the other 1/3 is design build. He stated that the school system did not have funds for the
project when he was hired so it was settled for construction manager and the risk was no guarantee
of payment until the project is funded.

Chair Kirby asked if there will be a savings in contingency and how will the County know.

Mr. Ott stated it will be documented.

Chair Kirby asked if the bids are less because he serves as construction manager not at risk.

Mr. Ott stated they come in 18% cheaper under that bidding method. He noted that material costs
are up 40%.

Chair Kirby stated that now this project has to be brought in at $53 million to include the Walker
renovations.

Mr. Ott stated he hoped the State would provide additional monies however inflation was out of
his control.



Commissioner Cummings discussed the bid process and the contracts provided.

Mr. Ott explained the change orders are requirements from USDA to add the County.

Chair Kirby stated he would recommend ordering the elevator in advance of the renovation project.
Commissioner McLaughlin asked what items were being cut for cost savings.

Mr. Ott stated that light fixtures and flooring are areas where changes to the materials have resulted
in savings. He stated that he understands that $50 million is a lot of money for a county like
Chowan.

The Board discussed the areas that are to be renovated at DF Walker noting it is in three parts (the
second floor, the elevator and technology building). The Board discussed concerns over the costs
to renovate the classrooms on the second floor later for Board of Education offices.

Dr. Sasscer stated that the Board of Education is willing to put monies forward for the 2™ floor
renovation however there is no long term benefit to the Board of Education for doing this unless

the areas are designated for future offices for the Board of Education.

Chair Kirby stated that he felt the Board of Commissioners should rename the building to eliminate
confusion about having two DF Walker buildings in the community.

Dr. Sasscer noted the Board of Education approved the single phase construction plan 6-1.

Chair Kirby discussed the Board of Commissioners commitment to education through this project.
Commissioner Lawrence moved to approve the recommendation to construct the new John A.
Holmes High School as a single-phase project and to complete the renovation of the old DF
Walker.

Commissioner Kehayes asked if the Board needs to set a not to exceed amount.

Mr. Howard stated that the County will control the cost of the project and stated there may be
opportunities for a PARTF grant in the near future for the gym.

Chair Kirby asked for all in favor of the motion, the motion passed unanimously (7-0).

Architect Contract/Construction Manager Contract

Mr. Howard stated that the County is required to be added to the original contracts. He stated the
first change order adds the County. The 2™ includes a 5% retainer and the third gives approval to
hire the architect for design work.

Chair Kirby stated he would like the County’s approval to be contingent on the Board of
Educations approval of the contract.



Commissioner Evans moved to approve both contracts with MB Khan and LS3P as presented,
contingent on Board of Education approval as well. Chair Kirby asked for all in favor, the motion
passed unanimously (7-0).

Planning Board Appointment- Area A

Ms. Stallings noted that the Board has received another application for consideration for
appointment to the Planning Board Area A. She stated that the application is from Dwayne
Goodwin.

Commissioner Lawrence moved to appoint Dwayne Goodwin to Area A.

Property Donation
Mr. Howard stated that the Board is asked to consider a property donation from Robert and
Angela Southwick. The property is located 708 Batts Island Road in the Riversound Subdivision.

Board members discussed the property.

Commissioner Cummings moved to decline the offer. Chair Kirby asked for all in favor the
motion passed unanimously (7-0).

Broadband Letter of Support

Chair Kirby presented the Board with a proposed letter in support of the Albemarle Regional
Broadband Expansion Project. He stated that the Albemarle Commission has requested that its
County members provide a letter. He stated he is in favor of submitting the letter provided to the
Board members. A copy of the letter is in the meeting file labeled September 20, 2021.

Commissioner Evans moved to approve the letter as submitted. Chair Kirby asked for all in
favor, the motion passed unanimously (7-0).

Financial Items
Finance Officer Cathy Smith presented the following:

Budget Amendment
BA2021-081




.. Revenue Expense
Account Number Account Description
(Inc+/Dec-) (Inc+/Dec-)

Central Comm

11-4270-122-00 Salaries - Overtime (4,889.83)

11-4270-440-00 Contract Services - Maintenance 4,889.83
Solid Waste

62-3471-510-00 Tipping Fee 2,208.27

62-3831-491-00 Interestlncome 34.00

62-3990-990-00 Fund Balance Appropriation 2,087.46

62-4710-690-01 Contribution to PCG Landfill 4,329.73

Balanced 4,329.73 4,329.73

Justification:

Final Budget Clean-up for Fy 06/30/21

Commissioner McLaughlin moved to approve the letter as presented. Chair Kirby asked for all in
favor, the motion passed unanimously (7-0).

External Board/Committee Report
Chair Kirby asked Board members to report on the activities of the external boards to which they
have been appointed. He reported on the Albemarle Commission Board.

Manager’s Report
County Manager Kevin Howard updated the Board on the following:

- A meeting has been scheduled for this coming Friday with Division of Water Resources
to discuss the R/O project and SOC.

- Mr. Howard and Chair Kirby stated they met with the Secretary of Transportation to
request funds to continue the 187 project.

- The Animal Shelter parking lot is complete

- Bennett’s Millpond is temporarily closed due to an algal bloom

Timely and Important Matters
CIp
Ms. Stallings noted the CIP committee will meet on next Tuesday.

Timbermill
Chair Kirby noted that DEQ held a virtual conference on the preliminary Timbermill wind
permit. He stated a field visit has been scheduled.

Commissioner Kehayes asked if the map showing the turbine location is accurate.

Chair Kirby stated one will be relocated due to the airport.



Commissioner Lawrence asked why there was no concern shown at the application time
regarding the location of the tower.

Mr. Howard stated that the airport was asked to send a letter if there was an issue with the flight
path. He stated they oppose the tower location if it poses any problem.

Commissioner Lawrence stated he was unclear as to why now the tower location is a concern.
Commissioner McLaughlin stated that the tower is not considered a problem.

Mr. Howard stated that the engineers looked at it and the letter states it is a non-issue.

ARPA Funds

Commissioner Kehayes stated he felt the elevator for the DF Walker Project is eligible for
ARPA funds.

Commissioner McLaughlin stated he felt HVAC would also be eligible.

Mr. Howard stated he would look into it.

Adjourn
Being no further business Commissioner Evans moved to adjourn the meeting. Chair Kirby
asked for all in favor, the motion passed unanimously (7-0).

Bob Kirby, Chairman Susanne Stallings, Clerk



